
Page 1 of 3 Stayton City Council Agenda 
November 5, 2018 

 AGENDA 
STAYTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday, November 5, 2018 
Stayton Community Center 

400 W. Virginia Street 
Stayton, Oregon  97383 

CALL TO ORDER 7:00 PM Mayor Porter 

FLAG SALUTE 

ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS 

ANNOUNCEMENTS – PLEASE READ CAREFULLY 
Items not on the agenda but relevant to City business may be discussed at this meeting. Citizens are encouraged to attend all 
meetings of the City Council to insure that they stay informed. Agenda items may be moved forward if a Public Hearing is 
scheduled. 

a. Additions to the agenda
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.

PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Request for Recognition:  If you wish to address the Council, please fill out a green “Request for Recognition” form.  
Forms are on the table at the back of the room. Recommended time for presentation is 10 minutes. Recommended 
time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 

CONSENT AGENDA 
a. October 15, 2018 City Council Minutes

Purpose of the Consent Agenda: 
In order to make more efficient use of meeting time, resolutions, minutes, bills, and other items which are routine in nature and 
for which no debate is anticipated, shall be placed on the Consent Agenda.  Any item placed on the Consent Agenda may be 
removed at the request of any council member prior to the time a vote is taken.  All remaining items of the Consent Agenda are 
then disposed of in a single motion to adopt the Consent Agenda.  This motion is not debatable.  The Recorder to the Council will 
then poll the council members individually by a roll call vote.  If there are any dissenting votes, each item on the consent Agenda 
is then voted on individually by roll call vote.  Copies of the Council packets include more detailed staff reports, letters, 
resolutions, and other supporting materials.  A citizen wishing to review these materials may do so at Stayton City Hall, 362 N. 
Third Avenue, Stayton, or the Stayton Public Library, 515 N. First Avenue, Stayton. 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or other 
accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. If you require special 
accommodations contact Deputy City Recorder Alissa Angelo at (503) 769-3425. 



Page 2 of 3 Stayton City Council Agenda 
November 5, 2018 

PUBLIC HEARING 
Review of Ordinance No. 1019, Amending SMC Titles 6, 8, and 15, Promoting 
Maintenance of Buildings and Public Spaces 
a. Commencement of Public Hearing
b. Staff Report
c. Questions from the Council
d. Public Testimony
e. Questions from the Council
f. Staff Summary
g. Close of Hearing
h. Council Deliberation
i. Council Decision

UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None  

NEW BUSINESS – None  

STAFF/COMMISSION REPORTS – None 

PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Recommended time for presentations is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGER 

BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR 

BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS – November 19, 2018 
a. Village Creek “No Parking” Public Hearing
b. Neighborhood Improvement Grants
c. Housing Advisory Commission

ADJOURN



Page 3 of 3 Stayton City Council Agenda 
November 5, 2018 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS 
NOVEMBER 2018 

Monday November 5 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday November 6 Parks & Recreation Board Cancelled 
Monday November 12 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF VETERANS DAY HOLIDAY 
Tuesday November 13 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday November 19 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Thursday November 22 

CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF THANKSGIVING HOLIDAY 
Friday November 23 

Monday November 26 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Wednesday November 28 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room

DECEMBER 2018 
Monday December 3 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday December 4 Parks & Recreation Board 6:30 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room
Tuesday December 11 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday December 17 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday December 19 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room
Monday December 24 CITY OFFICES CLOSE AT NOON IN OBSERVANCE OF CHRISTMAS HOLIDAY 
Tuesday December 25 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF CHRISTMAS HOLIDAY 
Monday December 31 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

JANUARY 2019 
Tuesday January 1 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF NEW YEARS HOLIDAY 
Monday January 7 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday January 8 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Tuesday January 8 Parks & Recreation Board 6:30 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room

Wednesday January 16 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room
Monday January 21 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF MARTIN LUTHER KING DAY 
Tuesday January 22 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Monday January 28 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

FEBRUARY 2019 
Monday February 4 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday February 5 Parks & Recreation Board 6:30 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room
Tuesday February 12 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday February 18 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF PRESIDENTS DAY 
Tuesday February 19 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday February 20 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room
Monday February 25 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 



Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes               Page 1 of 3 
October 15, 2018 

 City of Stayton 
City Council Meeting Action Minutes 

October 15, 2018 

LOCATION:  STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER, 400 W. VIRGINIA STREET, STAYTON 

Time Start: 7:00 P.M.     Time End: 8:00 P.M. 

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 

COUNCIL STAYTON STAFF 
Mayor Henry Porter Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
Councilor Priscilla Glidewell Keith Campbell, City Manager 
Councilor Mark Kronquist Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning & Development 
Councilor Christopher Molin Lance Ludwick, Public Works Director (excused) 
Councilor Brian Quigley (excused) Janna Moser, Library Director 
Councilor Joe Usselman Rich Sebens, Chief of Police 

AGENDA ACTIONS 
REGULAR MEETING 
Announcements 
a. Additions to the Agenda
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest,

Bias, etc.

None. 
None. 

Presentations / Comments from the Public None. 
Consent Agenda 
a. September 17, 2018 City Council Minutes Motion from Councilor Kronquist, seconded by Councilor 

Molin, to approve the consent agenda as submitted. Motion 
passed 4:0. 

Public Hearing None. 

Unfinished Business None. 
New Business 
Intergovernmental Agreement for Bus Shelter 
a. Staff Report – Keith Campbell

b. Council Deliberation

c. Council Decision

Award of Contract for Consultant Services for Economic 
Development Strategies 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman

Mr. Campbell introduced Ted Stonecliffe of Cherriots 
Regional who spoke about the proposed agreement for a bus 
shelter in Stayton. 

Discussion of logistics of the bus within Stayton, 
maintenance costs, and lifespan of the shelter. 

Motion from Councilor Kronquist, seconded by Councilor 
Glidewell, to authorize the City Manager to enter into an 
intergovernmental agreement with Salem Area Mass Transit 
for placement of a bus shelter at 1820 N. First Avenue. 
Motion passed 4:0. 

Mr. Fleishman reviewed the staff report. 



Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes               Page 2 of 3 
October 15, 2018 

b. Council Deliberation

c. Council Decision

Reclassification of Finance Director 
a. Staff Report – Keith Campbell

b. Council Deliberation

c. Council Decision

Discussion surrounding the proposed project and consultant. 

Motion from Councilor Glidewell, seconded by Councilor 
Molin, to authorize the City Manager to execute a contract 
with Bridge Economic Development for an amount not to 
exceed $98,615. 

Council Discussion: Kronquist requested more updates from 
the Consultant during the project. Mr. Fleishman will request 
this of the Consultant. 

Motion passed 4:0. 

Mr. Campbell reviewed the staff report. 

Discussion of current and proposed salary range. 

Motion from Councilor Kronquist, seconded by Councilor 
Usselman, to approve the reclassification of the Finance 
Director position as proposed. Motion passed 4:0. 

Staff / Commission Reports 
Finance Department Report 
a. September 2018 Monthly Finance Department

Report 

Police Chief’s Report – Chief Rich Sebens 
a. September 2018 Statistical Report

Public Works Director’s Report – Lance Ludwick 
a. September 2018 Operating Report

Planning & Development Director’s Report – Dan 
Fleishman 
a. September 2018 Activities Report

Library Director’s Report – Janna Moser 
a. September 2018 Activities

Brief discussion regarding disconnected services. 

Chief Sebens reviewed his staff report and spoke briefly 
about the recent Coffee with a Cop event.  

No discussion. 

Mr. Fleishman shared a Transportation System Plan 
community meeting will be held on Wednesday, October 
17th at 5:30 p.m. in the E.G. Siegmund Room at the Stayton 
Public Library.  

Ms. Moser shared the upcoming Craft and Art Supply 
Presentations / Comments from the Public 
a. Paige Hook

Ms. Hook encouraged the Council to read their packets prior 
to the meeting and requested Council members not address 
members of the audience when they are unable to respond 
at the microphone. Councilor Kronquist responded. 

Business from the City Manager Reminder of the upcoming Stayton Police K9 Drug Dog 
Spaghetti Dinner being hosted by the United Methodist 
Church on Friday, November 2nd from 5:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. 

Business from the Mayor None. 



Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes               Page 3 of 3 
October 15, 2018 

Business from the Council Reminder of the Candidate Forum being held at the Brown 
House Event Center on Tuesday at 6:30 p.m. 

Future Agenda Items – Monday, November 5, 2018 
a. Ordinance No. 1019 – Downtown Ordinances Public Hearing

APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 5TH DAY OF NOVEMBER 2018, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY 
COUNCIL. 

Date:  By: 
Henry A. Porter, Mayor 

Date: Attest: 
Keith D. Campbell, City Manager 

Date: Transcribed by: 
Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 



 
Review of Ordinance No. 1019   Page 1 of 5  
November 5, 2018 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry A. Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Keith Campbell, City Manager 
 
DATE:   November 5, 2018 
 
SUBJECT:  Review of Ordinance 1019, Amending SMC Titles 6, 8, and 15, 

Promoting Maintenance of Buildings and Public Spaces 
  
     
ISSUE 

Should the City Council consider amending or repealing portions of or all of Ordinance No. 
1019? 
 
ENCLOSURE(S) 

• April 24th, 2017 Letter and “Proposed General Building Codes for Downtown Stayton” 
handout from Friends of Old Town Stayton 

• Ordinance 1015, Amending SMC Title 17, Updating the Regulations for the Color Scheme 
of Buildings and Standards for Awnings in the Downtown Zones 

• March 19th, 2018 “Proposed New Ordinances for The Downtown Core of Stayton” 
handout from the Friends of Old Town Stayton 

• Ordinance 1019, Amending SMC Titles 6, 8, and 15, Promoting the Maintenance of 
Buildings and Public Spaces 

• Letter sent by City to Downtown Stakeholders 

• Feedback received by the City (prior to publication of the agenda) 

• Oregon Indoor Clean Air Act (ICAA) 

• ICAA Downtown 10’ area Smoking Map 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Following the passage of Ordinance No. 985, which addressed the City’s sign code in August 
2015, Councilor Glidewell approached City staff with a list of proposed ordinances for the 
Downtown. It was said the ordinances were necessary to improve the downtown and were 
taken from the City of Silverton and by correlation to have a successful downtown, the code 
revisions were a requirement. The proposed ordinances were internally named the “Silverton 
Ordinances.” Staff advised the ordinances were aggressive and potentially controversial, 



 
Review of Ordinance No. 1019   Page 2 of 5  
November 5, 2018 

suggesting it would be better if such proposals came from a downtown business and not from 
the City. 
 
Staff spent significant time building and establishing the latest attempt to revitalize the 
downtown area. There have been at least two prior attempts to coordinate downtown efforts, 
both of which failed. In the community there was a lot of doubt and skepticism that a new 
effort would succeed where other efforts had failed. It was critical for the new effort to build 
trust and positivity, and to look for ideas and programs that were “carrots” and not “hammers.” 
It was clearly expressed to FOTS/RDS that their mission should be to build up political and social 
capital, and be a positive force not pursuing aggressive or potentially divisive actions. It was 
also strongly felt by City staff the focus shouldn’t be to “legislate our way to excellence” but 
rather look for positive projects and positive incremental changes.  
 
The “Silverton Ordinances” were officially presented to the Governing Body at the May 15th, 
2017 City Council meeting. In a letter dated April 24th, 2017, the Friends of Old Town Stayton 
(FOTS, now Revitalize Downtown Stayton or RDS) provided a cover letter and copy of the 
“Proposed General Building Codes for Downtown Stayton.” In comments from representatives 
from FOTS they stated the ordinances were, “not heavy handed” and were “our (FOTS/RDS) 
ideas” and “developed by the design committee.” The ordinances were, for all practical 
purposes, the “Silverton Ordnances” that had previously been presented to the City by 
Councilor Glidewell. 
 
On January 16th, 2018 the first phase of the “Silverton Ordinances” were brought before the 
Governing Body. Ordinance No. 1015 was presented and passed by the Governing Body. This 
section of the “Silverton Ordinances” dealt with land use matters specifically related to Title 17 
of the Stayton Municipal Code and worked to establish a color scheme for buildings and 
standards for awnings in the downtown zones. The item had been considered and 
recommended by the Planning Commission.  
 
At their March 19th, 2018 City Council Meeting, FOTS/RDS brought forward the next phase of 
their proposed ordinances. At the meeting a representative of FOTS/RDS stated they had 
“personally invited each merchant on First, Second, and Third Avenue” to discuss the proposed 
ordinances. This was a clear public declaration to satisfy the expectation of staff.   
 
City staff made an agreement with FOTS/RDS to not publicly oppose Ordinance No. 1019 and 
assist FOTS/RDS, if they would agree to remove from consideration and no longer advocate for 
the Vacant Building portion of the “Silverton Ordinances.” An agreement was struck and 
FOTS/RDS said after Ordinance No. 1019 was adopted, FOTS/RDS would agree to move forward 
with positive “carrot” projects and avoid “hammers.” 
 
Ordinance No. 1019 was first presented to the Council at the April 16th, 2018 meeting. As 
presented by staff, the provisions in Ordinance No. 1019 would have applied only within the 
area designated as Downtown by the City’s Comprehensive Plan Map. Staff suggested that prior 
to consideration of the ordinance, the City Council conduct a public hearing. 
 



 
Review of Ordinance No. 1019   Page 3 of 5  
November 5, 2018 

The Council considered the ordinance a second time at their May 21st meeting. FOTS/RDS 
requested the Council consider having them also apply to both sides of N. First Avenue, from 
Water Street to Washington Street. This amendment was made by the Council. 
 
At the June 4th, 2018 Council meeting, the City Council had its final consideration prior to 
formally adopting Ordinance No. 1019. Prior to the final vote there was discussion on the 
proposed smoking portion of the ordinance. Staff was asked about enforcement of the smoking 
ordinance. The Police Chief noted there is, “a smoking police through the state and they would 
need to be called.” The Chief further explained, “We (police) would not actively patrol for that 
issue (smoking)” and, “we (police) will not actively enforce.” 
 
After the passage of Ordinance No. 1019, a representative of FOTS/RDS made repeated and 
persistent demands that staff begin to actively enforce the smoking portion of the ordinance. 
Staff was told we were not following the wishes and expectations of the City Council and we 
had an obligation to enforce our ordinances. These are key factors that have led to the 
escalation of this matter.  
 
A representative of FOTS/RDS has told multiple members of City staff there were ulterior 
motives for the passage of the smoking portion of the ordinances, which was presumably why 
FOTS/RDS was so insistent there be active enforcement. If this is true, then the Governing Body 
has a right to know and determine if the intent of the ordinances is one they would support and 
endorse. 
 
A representative of FOTS/RDS also insisted, on multiple occasions, the City’s Code Enforcement 
Officer hand-deliver copies of the ordinance to downtown stakeholders. Staff contacted the 
Oregon Mainstreet Program who agreed this work should be done by FOTS/RDS. 
 
The feedback and frustration from downtown businesses at several City Council meetings has 
led to concerns that the level of communication from FOTS/RDS to the downtown businesses 
was not as robust as stated, both publically and privately.  
 
Over several weeks’ staff visited with eighteen prominent and established local businesses in 
downtown and asked if anyone from FOTS/RDS had discussed with them the proposed 
ordinances. Seventeen of these businesses stated they had not received any contact from any 
members of FOTS/RDS. One business said they hadn’t been contacted by FOTS/RDS, but instead 
had been contacted by a City councilmember. A follow up question was asked if the businesses 
were aware of the contents of the ordinances. All the contacted businesses said they were not 
aware of the contents of the ordinance. Following the passage of both ordinances a 
councilmember asked a FOTS/RDS board member to provide details of the communication with 
downtown businesses prior to Ordinance No. 1019 being brought before the governing body 
for consideration. The response from FOTS/RDS was “we need to do a better job 
communicating.”  
 
Of particular concern, during a City Council meeting a City councilmember asked 
representatives of the four bars impacted by Ordinance No. 1019, if anyone from FOTS/RDS had 



 
Review of Ordinance No. 1019   Page 4 of 5  
November 5, 2018 

contacted them prior to the Ordinance being enacted. All indicated they had not been 
contacted. To put it in clear terms, there was no communication with the businesses that would 
be most directly impacted by Ordinance No. 1019. 
 
Staff has now learned in late January of this year, FOTS/RDS held a quarterly Business 
Roundtable meeting. At the Business Roundtable, an agenda item was the remaining content of 
the proposed ordinances. RDS/FOTS also put the proposed ordinances on their website. 
FOTS/RDS treated stakeholders who did not attend the meeting as tacitly approving of the 
language of the proposal.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 

A fiscal impact will be determined by the decision of the Governing Body.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

In the view of staff, the downtown bars and businesses had two valid and justified complaints 
regarding Ordinance No. 1019. 
 

1. Downtown businesses were not properly notified or provided a proper forum for 
consideration of their thoughts and concerns prior to the Council consideration and 
passage of Ordinance No. 1019. 

2. An argument of equity. Specifically, why would there be an inequity between the rules 
and requirements between businesses designated in the downtown and businesses 
located in other segments of our community. 

 
This agenda item should address the first concern. As for the second concern, a City can have 
different rules and standards for different segments or areas of the community, but it is 
appropriate to be able to articulate the purpose, value, or intent of different standards. 
 
While significant efforts have been made to reframe the discussion into a public policy debate 
on smoking, those efforts are a deflection and distraction. It is critical that the City embrace and 
support a fair and just political process for creating policy. What happened with Ordinance No. 
1019 is an example of a bad process with a predictably divisive and negative outcome. The City, 
staff, and the Governing Body have been unnecessarily maligned and created a needless ill will 
between the City and downtown businesses. The City support of a Mainstreet Model was 
predicated and drafted in the belief of being a supportive and positive influence downtown.  
The City placed trust that FOTS/RDS would follow the advice of staff and properly vet and 
discuss the proposed ordinances with the impacted stakeholders. 
 
Ultimately, it is the responsibility of the City Manager to assure the City works to create a fair 
and equitable procedure for making policy. On reflection, staff should have verified and vetted 
the comments and statements made by representatives of FOTS/RDS. The failure to do so was a 
mistake which needed to be corrected by properly vetting the impact of Ordinance No. 1019 on 
the stakeholders.  



 
Review of Ordinance No. 1019   Page 5 of 5  
November 5, 2018 

 
FOTS/RDS has both publically and privately stated they intend to pursue the vacant building 
portion of the “Silverton Ordinances.” If this is indeed their intent, it would be a violation of the 
agreement that was made with staff for our support on Ordinances No. 1015 and 1019, and 
would demonstrate FOTS/RDS does not intend to work in good-faith with City staff.  
 
Since the “Silverton Ordinances” were first brought presented staff has actively encouraged 
FOTS/RDS to be a positive force, to look for positive, non-controversial projects and task that 
could build faith, trust, support and political and social capital for the long-term benefit of the 
downtown partnership. Focus on “carrots” not “hammers.” FOTS/RDS has made it clear that 
they feel that the Governing Body has given them “carte blanche” and have stated “why would 
we ever need to communicate with the City.” The concern was that in this situation building 
relationships and positivity should be the singular focus. At this point, the drama of Ordinance 
No. 1019 is a sunk cost.  
  
The staff recommendation is to make a final decision on this Ordinance. 
 
OPTIONS AND MOTION(S) 

1. Retain the provisions enacted by Ordinance No. 1019 

No motion necessary to amend various provisions enacted by Ordinance No. 1019 

2. Direct staff to prepare an ordinance to amend the following sections of Ordinance No. 
1019 as follows: 

Motion to direct staff to prepare an ordinance to amend the following sections of 
Ordinance No. 1019 as follows     .  

3. Repeal Ordinance No. 1019 

Motion to direct staff to prepare an ordinance to repeal Ordinance No. 1019. 

 





1 

Friends of Old Town Stayton 
Proposed General Building Codes for Downtown Stayton 

 
Purpose: To improve the economic vitality of the Downtown area by improving the 
appearance of buildings and infrastructure in the Downtown District, including the approaches 
to Third Avenue from FIrst Avenue. 
 
Boundaries: The Downtown District will be defined by the area bounded by E Water St on the 
south, E Burnett St on the north, N Third Ave on the east and N First Ave on the west. 
 
Painting of exterior surfaces of buildings: When owner paints a building within the Downtown 
District, only City approved color pallette shall be used 

a. Different colors shall be used to accentuate and highlight trim, windows, and other 
building features. 

 Animal Waste: . The owner of every animal shall be responsible for the removal of any 
excreta deposited by his animal(s) on public walks or any public right of way between the 
street curb and the adjacent public or private property line, recreation area, or private 
property. 
 
Vacant Buildings in Downtown Stayton: 
Definition:   A building/structure that appears to be empty of furnishings and/or merchandise 
and not otherwise legally occupied, or any condition that, on its own or combined with other 
conditions present, would lead a reasonable person to believe that a property or building is 
unoccupied. Such conditions include, but are not limited to: overgrown and/or dead 
vegetation; accumulation of newspapers, circulars and/or flyers; disconnected utilities; 
accumulation of trash, junk and/or debris; broken or boarded up windows and/or doors; the 
absence of merchandise consistent with retail sale; and statements by neighbors or 
government employees that the property or building is vacant. Portions of buildings with more 
than one section such as buildings with separate storefronts may be determined to be vacant 
even if other portions of the building are occupied.  
 
Purpose:   The Guidelines are intended to protect the Downtown Core from blight, 
deterioration, and decay as a result of properties in a condition or state that potentially would 
have an adverse effect on the value, utility, and habitability of property within the City. Such 
properties may: 

1. Pose hazards to the public health, safety, and welfare. 
2. Cause damage to adjoining and nearby properties . A property which is merely 

unkempt or vacant for long periods may reduce the value of adjoining and nearby 
property, and the habitability and economic well-being of the City may be materially 
and adversely affected. 

3. Be a cause and source of blight in both residential and non-residential neighborhoods, 
especially when the person in charge of the building fails to actively maintain and 
manage the building to ensure that it does not become a liability to the neighborhood.  

4. Discourage economic development and retard appreciation of property values.  
 
 



2 

5. Be potential fire hazards and can jeopardize the ability of owners of neighboring 
property from securing or maintaining affordable fire insurance.  

6. Cause increased need for police protection due to misuse of the property by persons 
not having permission or right to use the property.  

7. Be the core and cause of spreading blight. 
 
It is the responsibility of property ownership to prevent owned property from becoming a 
burden to the neighborhood and community and a threat to the public health, safety, or 
welfare. It is also in the community's best interest not to lose unique buildings, and in the best 
interest of the owner to maintain his investment. 
 Exceptions: The Vacant Building Code shall not apply to a building and/or properties that 
are actively undergoing construction or repair as indicated by a valid building permit and 
appearance that the person in charge is progressing diligently to complete the repair or 
construction. This exception does not apply to requirements relevant to public safety or health 
concerns. 
 
A.  The building and/or property shall be secure so that it is not to accessible to 
unauthorized persons, including but not limited to the closure and locking of windows and 
doors (walk through, sliding, and garage) and any other opening of such size that may allow a 
child to access the interior of a structure; chaining or padlocking gates, and repairing fencing.  
 
B. Display of address number. 
Address numbers posted shall be the same as the number listed on the county assessment 
and taxation records for the property. All dwellings shall have four-inch-high address numbers 
posted in a conspicuous place on a contrasting background so they may be read from the 
listed street or public way. Units within apartment houses shall be clearly numbered or 
lettered. 
C. Accessory Structures 
All accessory structures, including sheds, trellises, awnings, fences, and other similar 
features, shall be maintained structurally safe and sound, and in good repair. Exterior steps 
and walkways shall be maintained free of debris, moss, mildew, trash, unsafe obstructions or 
hazardous conditions. 
 
D. Exterior Walls And Exposed Surfaces.  
1. Exterior wall and weather-exposed exterior surface or attachment shall be free of holes, 
breaks, loose or rotting boards or timbers and any other conditions which might admit rain or 
dampness to the interior portions of the walls or the occupied spaces of the building.  
 
2. Exterior wood surfaces shall be made substantially impervious to the adverse effects of 
weather by periodic application of an approved protective coating of weather-resistant 
preservative, paint, or other approved coating, and be maintained in good condition. When a 
building is repainted, owner must use the approved City color palette. 

a. The painting of brick walls is permitted. 
b. Different colors shall be used to accentuate and highlight trim, windows, and other 
building features from the body of the building. 

 



3 

E. Awnings and Canopies. 
a. When installing new awnings, they shall extend out from the building front to cover at least 
two-thirds of the sidewalk unless it is shown that such a distance will interfere with existing 
trees, poles, etc., to provide pedestrian protection from the elements. Awnings shall be clean 
and in good repair. 
b. Awnings shall be flat or sloping. Awnings shall be made of metal, wood, canvas or similar 
materials. Rounded bubble or plastic awnings are prohibited. Fully glazed awnings are not 
permitted. 
c. Awnings shall fit within the window bays (either above the main glass or the transom light) 
so as not to obscure or distract from significant architectural features. 
d. The color of the awning shall be compatible and attractive with its attached building. 
e. Awnings shall not be internally illuminated. However, lighting which provides illumination to 
the sidewalk and signage is required from Dusk to 6AM. 
f. Awnings shall be a minimum of eight feet above the sidewalk. 
F. Signs or other added elements on the facade shall be removed when no longer used for 
it's intended purpose, or maintained in good repair, clean, and whole. Blank sign fixtures are 
not permitted. 

1. When possible, exterior Equipment shall not be located on the front facade. If 
inevitable, equipment shall be concealed from street view using an appropriate 
enclosure. If not in active use, such equipment shall be removed 

 
G. Windows.  
Each window shall be substantially weather-tight, shall be kept in sound condition and repair 
for its intended use, and shall comply with the following:  

a. Window sash shall be fully supplied with glass window panes without cracks and 
holes.  Broken windows and/or doors shall be secured by means of reglazing with 
undamaged glass or other approved permanent material, and not by cardboard, 
plywood, or other temporary means except as necessary temporarily for not more than 
one month while awaiting reglazing. If another approved permanent material is used, it 
is subject to the same display guidelines as glass. 
 
b. Window sash shall be in good condition and fit weather-tight within its frames.  
 
c. Window frame shall be constructed and maintained in relation to the adjacent wall 
construction so as to exclude rain as completely as possible and to substantially 
exclude wind from entering the structure.  
 

H. Doors.  
Exterior doors, door assemblies, and hardware shall be maintained in good condition, be 
weather-tight, and substantially exclude wind and rain from entering the structure.  
 
 
 
 



4 

I. Buildings located in commercial areas shall have some street presence by the display 
of goods in the storefront windows, interpretive displays, or some other activity that give the 
appearance of the building being occupied. Displays in vacant buildings shall be reviewed 
and approved by the Planning Department Director prior to installation. Buildings temporarily 
vacated between tenants may be exempted from these guidelines for 60 days. 
 
Displays shall be reviewed for the following:  
 
a. Displays may include art, historic posters, paint applied to the interior of the glass, blinds, 
shutters, or merchandise. 
 
b. If it is an interior display vs. being applied onto the glass, blinds, or shutters, the display 
shall encompass the first 3 feet from the window and be partitioned from the remainder of the 
space by a screen at least 6 feet tall. The goods and/or interpretive displays should 
encompass a minimum of approximately 50% of the available area. 
 
c. Any display applied to the interior of the glass, blinds, or shutters shall cover 100% of the 
window 7 feet vertically from the sidewalk level. At least 25% of such area shall consist of art, 
historical posters, or murals. 
 
d. If the property is for sale or lease, such sign advertising this fact shall be no larger than 4 
square feet of the total display 
 
e. The displays shall be maintained in good condition and not faded or deteriorated.  
 
f. Content of the displays shall be in compliance with allowable uses within the zone.  
 
g. Displays shall comply with the requirements of the Sign Code if applicable. 
 
 
J. Debris. 
Property shall be kept free of debris, trash, building materials, or the storage of other goods 
which are visible from the street or adjacent properties. The building and/or property shall be 
kept free of any accumulation of newspapers, circulars or flyers, graffiti, discarded items 
including but not limited to furniture, clothing, appliances, or any other items that give the 
appearance that the property or building is vacant. Debris shall include, but not be limited to: 
tires, lumber, household appliances, inoperable or excess vehicles, furniture, sinks, toilets, 
cabinets, other household fixtures, equipment, rubbish, garbage, debris, salvage materials, or 
parts thereof which constitute a fire hazard and/or are stored or accumulated in such a 
manner as to be visible from a public street, alley or adjoining property; 
 
 
K. Weeds or other noxious vegetation shall be cut down or destroyed, or otherwise 
prevented from becoming unsightly, from becoming a fire hazard, or from maturing or going to 
seed. 
 
 



5 

L. Walkways, Parking Areas, and Walls.  
a. Walls, driveways, walkways, parking areas, and retaining and/or decorative walls shall be 
maintained in such condition as to not become so defective, unsightly, or in such condition of 
deterioration or disrepair that the same causes potential depreciation of the values of 
surrounding property, or is materially detrimental to nearby properties and improvements.  
 
b. Maintenance and/or construction of walls, driveways, walkways, parking areas, and 
retaining and/or decorative walls located within the right-of-way shall be the responsibility of 
the adjacent property owner unless otherwise approved by a legally recorded easement or 
other legal document.  
 
M. The property shall be posted with name and 24-hour contact phone number of the 
owner, person in charge, or a local property management representative. The posting shall be 
12” X 18” and shall contain the words “THIS PROPERTY MANAGED BY . . .” The posting 
shall be secured to the exterior of the building or placed in a location on the property so it is 
visible from the street. If the person in charge of the property or building is an entity or does 
not reside within 50 miles of the City limits, the person in charge shall contract with or 
otherwise engage a person within 50 miles to provide property management and to perform 
inspections to verify that all requirements of these guidelines and any other applicable laws 
are being met.  
 
 
 
 
 
NOTE: Procedures, responsible persons, notifications of violation, and enforcement by 
penalties should be developed for cases of non-compliance. 
 
 
 
 





























From: aangelo@ci.stayton.or.us
To: Alissa Angelo
Subject: Downtown Ordinance Comments
Date: Thursday, October 11, 2018 11:05:45 AM

Name
Skip neill

Email:
sneill@bcsllc.com

Downtown Business Name
Boldt Carlisle + Smith

Downtown Building Address
408 N. 3rd Ave.

Please share your comments or concerns regarding Ordinance No. 1019
Making the downtown accessible, attractive, and functional for use by all members of the
public is important to the vitality of any downtown. I am generally in favor of this revision to
the ordinance, although I wonder how the enforcement will work out in practice. For example,
if a person's animal defecates on the sidewalk in front of my building and community
enforcement notices before I do, what happens? Am I responsible to pick up after animals in
this scenario? Naturally, I want to keep the area around my building clean and welcoming so I
would clean it up. It is a shame that common sense and personal responsibility is not so
common anymore. I wonder, too, about smoking enforcement. 

******* Email Details ********
From IP address: 207.55.60.236
Submitted date: 10/11/2018 1:05:36 PM ID: 495

mailto:aangelo@ci.stayton.or.us
mailto:aangelo@ci.stayton.or.us


From: aangelo@ci.stayton.or.us
To: Alissa Angelo
Subject: [Blacklisted Sender] Downtown Ordinance Comments
Date: Thursday, October 25, 2018 2:16:41 PM

Name
Charlene Vogel

Email:
charlenemvogel@gmail.com

Downtown Business Name
Santiam Ballet Academy / Charlene Vogel Photography

Downtown Building Address
279 N 3rd Ave

Please share your comments or concerns regarding Ordinance No. 1019
Smoking on the front sidewalks is having an adverse affect on business. Parents do not want to
walk through groups of people outside smoking with their children. I have had complaints
from people after fitness classes that they do not like to walk outside and get a lung full of
cigarette smoke. The storm drains outside of my doors are full of cigarette butts. Parents like
to be able to drop off a child to class and walk their dogs to the park but do not feel safe when
there are groups of people loitering and smoking. I can not leave the front door open without
my studio filling with the smell of smoke. It is not a healthy atmosphere and does not set a
good example for our young people. Parents with children are not going to want to walk our
sidewalks as long as this is happening. 

******* Email Details ********
From IP address: 64.130.197.119
Submitted date: 10/25/2018 4:16:31 PM ID: 505

mailto:aangelo@ci.stayton.or.us
mailto:aangelo@ci.stayton.or.us






From: aangelo@ci.stayton.or.us
To: Alissa Angelo
Subject: Downtown Ordinance Comments
Date: Monday, October 29, 2018 9:09:50 AM

Name
James Taylor

Email:
jETAUTOANDREPAIR@GMAIL.COM

Downtown Business Name
JET AUTO AND REPAIR

Downtown Building Address
210 E Water

Please share your comments or concerns regarding Ordinance No. 1019
The problem I have with the no debris on the property is I run a automotive repair shop we
have scrap metal that would be considered debris that gets put outside the building out of view
from the street but is considered debris. We save the metal until there's enough to justify a trip
to the scrap yard to recycle it instead of just throwing it away in the trash can and many times
the items are too big or too heavy. Sometimes the items are plastic or shipping styrofoam that
gets stored for a dump transfer station run. If I was not allowed to store scrap metal and other
replaced parts the cost of operations would increase having a large dumpster on site also
would not be as green for recycling. This also effects Flemming Autobody next to us with
body repair. The smoking issue is a problem also I don't smoke and don't care to smell it but
trying to ban smoking in the area just pushes people away when RDS is trying to get more
people to visit. Yes the smoking is a touchy issue but with Oregon law stating a person needs
to be at least 10 feet from a door way shuts down smoking along the majority of 3rd street thru
the core of shops.

******* Email Details ********
From IP address: 207.55.53.67
Submitted date: 10/29/2018 11:09:40 AM ID: 506

mailto:aangelo@ci.stayton.or.us
mailto:aangelo@ci.stayton.or.us


From: pennymarie0947
To: !CityofStayton
Subject: Smoking Ban
Date: Wednesday, October 31, 2018 12:08:39 PM

My name is Penny Hall and I represent the Red Apple 333 n 2nd ave.

We are opposed to this type of ban because of the financial damage it would cause the bars
and restaurants in the designated area.

Also, this targets a certain group of people that have been forced to smoke outside because
they no longer can smoke inside.

Non smokers do not support these establishments to create a cash flow needed to keep them in
business.

My full intention was to  be at the meeting Monday night but I just found out I have to work
and cannot attend.

There is a bigger picture here than what you are representing and the backlash is scary as to
what doors this would open to all businesses in the designated area.

Our customers do not smoke on city sidewalks but I feel it necessary to support the businesses
that their customers do.

Thank you 
Penny Hall 
503-932-7189

Sent from my Samsung Galaxy , an AT&T LTE smartphone

mailto:pennymarie0947@gmail.com
mailto:cityofstayton@ci.stayton.or.us


From: aangelo@ci.stayton.or.us
To: Alissa Angelo
Subject: Downtown Ordinance Comments
Date: Thursday, November 1, 2018 11:14:53 AM

Name
Linda Williams

Email:
ljwilli3@hotmail.com

Downtown Business Name
Not So Shabby

Downtown Building Address
618 N 2nd Ave Stayton or 97383

Please share your comments or concerns regarding Ordinance No. 1019
I think the ordinance covered things that need to be enforced in the core area as specified. I
say reinstate them.

******* Email Details ********
From IP address: 64.130.195.83
Submitted date: 11/1/2018 1:14:45 PM ID: 508

mailto:aangelo@ci.stayton.or.us
mailto:aangelo@ci.stayton.or.us


From: jrtemplin@santiamescrowinc.com
To: !CityofStayton
Subject: Ordinance NO 1019
Date: Thursday, November 1, 2018 1:12:07 PM

With regard to the Letter sent to Downtown Stakeholders:
 
            I would suggest that in Sections 2 and 3 any reference to the Downtown Core
be eliminated.
 
            We are A City ! If  something is Good for the “Core”, it is good for the whole
City.
 
Jim
 
JAMES R. TEMPLIN CSCEO
SANTIAM ESCROW INC.
216 E VIRGINIA ST.
STAYTON, OR  97383
 
 
Your best source for Collection Escrow Services !
 

mailto:jrtemplin@santiamescrowinc.com
mailto:cityofstayton@ci.stayton.or.us

























	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



